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St. John's Church is a simple rectangular structure with molded
weatherboards on a foundation of brick laid in Flemish bond. The west
gable end features the main doorway which contains the original doubléd
door surmounted by a small pediment. The doors have four tiers of bead
and bevel panels, arranged in pairs of aliernating long and shori panels,
with a single panel across the top. This arrangement is rare in the
United States, bul is found in Bermuda., An interesting feature of tne
agoors is the inside sheathing, which is laid in herringbone fashion, matchg
at the lock rail, Above the entrance is a row of four windows with molded
sills and nine-over-nine sash.,

The north and south elevations are seven bays long and feature a
box cornice decorated with classic modillions, The first and second bays
on both sides contain small windows which, with those on the west gable,
light the gallery. The remaining five bays contain large nave windows
with sixteen-over-sixXteen sash, many of which are original, The east
wall has an identical window on either side of the altar.

The interior arrangement of the church is quite simple with the chance
on a slightly raised platform at the east end, box pews in the nave, and
a paneled gallery over the west entrance.

The gallery is supported by a heavy turned post on elther side of the
center aisle, It is reached by two enclosed stalrs with paneled railings
which rise from the north and south walls.

The nave contains box pews with paneled sides, with a horizontal
panel above a vertical one and a molded cap, Within them are plank seatls
on three sides. All the pews have paneled doors with modern hinges in
imitation.of early hardware. . On the left at the crossing is a raised
oc tagonal pulpit reached by a narrow stair with paneled sides which dates
from a recent restoration. A sounding board with an ogee dome is suspendec
from the ceiling. The soffit of the sounding board is decorated with
triangular flat panels,

The chancel is enclosed by a communion rail with fine turned balusters
The chancel wall is decorated with four large tablets inscribed with the
Nicene and Apostles creeds and the Ten Commandments. Apparently these
are also modern additons.

The church walls are of rough plaster above a raised paneled wainscotb.
Tne ceiling, which is also plaster, is most unusual. It is flat on either
side with a curved center section in imitation of a barrel vault,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

~ A letter the governor wrote to General Nathanael Greene on July 18, 1781,

The Vestry of 8t. Peter'!'s Church in Granville County met on August
1, 1771, to discuss

_a Church to be Built and Compleated Finished at or near
St. Peters Church in Nutbush at the Following Dimentions.
(to wit) 60 feet long by 3L feet wide, 18 feet pitch with
such Elegant & Gonvenient Windows and Doors as they may
judge necessary--

In October of the same year the vesiry let a contract with John Lynch,
a master carpenter, for the construction of the new church., After almost
two years of sporadic effort the building was completed. John Lynch
signed his name to the foundation, along with the date, "“August 28, 1773.%
Shortly after the erection of the building then called Nutbush Church,
a small community sprang up around it, By 1781 it had acquired ihe name
of Williamsborough (later called Williamsboro) and included a score of
dwellings., : ' : ‘

The outbreak of the revolutionary war curtailed religious activities
at Nutbush, but the church building continued to be utilized. In July
1781 Governor Thomas Burke made the structure his temporary headquarters.,

noted Burke's address as "Nutbush Church in a little Town called Williams-
borough, Granville County."

From 1800 to 1820 Williamsbore had no minister and the church buildin
was used for secular meetings and entertainments. In 1821 the Reverend
William Mercer Green, who had just been ordained a deacon, took charge
of Nutbush Church. Two years prior the congregation had been officially
recognized as a parish by the Diocese of North Carolina. Through the
tireless efforts of the Reverend Mr. Green the parish was revived both
physically and spiritually. In his report to the convention of 1823,
Green stated: "The Church at Williamsboro, which four years ago was
a perfect ruin, has been thoroughly repaired. . « "

Since the church had been used occasionally for femporal purposes,
the congregation felt that if{ should be reconsecrated. Accordingly, on
October 16, 1825, Bishop Ravenscroft consecrated the church building as
5t, Johnts, 8t. John's Church quickly grew in importance and in 1828
Hishop Ravensceroft moved his Episcopal residence to Williamsboro and
served as rector for a year. In 1870 the Reverend VWilliam Shepherd
Pelttigrew took charge of St, John's and continued until his death in 1900,
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Following Pettigrevw's death the church moved into a peri ., of severe
decline. No regular services were held for some twenty years ud the
church building fell into such a state of disrepair that it wus unsafe.
In 1947 a movement was begun to restore the structure to its original
appearance, and in 1950 a formal compaign was inaugurated to solicit
‘gifts, On September 30, 1956, the completely restored building was re-
consecrated by the Rt. Reverend Edwin A. Penick, Bishop of the Diocese
of North Carolina.

5%, John's Church remains as the only colonial Anglican church
building in the Diocese of North Carolina, one of three dioceses in the
state. Thomas T. Waterman, in an article for the North Carcolina Churchmen,

described it as

+ » » a remarkable survival of a colonial church of its perilod,
While simple in form, the woodwork, both exterior and interior,
is extensive 'and well preserved., It constitutes the best
exemplar of colonial church woodwork in North Carolina, as the
other churches of the period have lost their interiors through
alteration or time.
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